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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (*GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the
emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the
companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and
other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated
by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to
the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM for the purpose of giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED.
The directors of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading,; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FH&HE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2004 is a critical year of transformation for the Group
(Venturepharm Laboratories Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries). For the year ended 31 December 2004, the
Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB36,157,000
(2003: RMB35,680,000). Profit attributable to shareholders
was RMB10,683,000 (2003: RMB20,360,000). Basic
earnings per share were RMB0.0297 (2003: RMB0.065).
The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2004 (2003: HKO0.5 cent
per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In late 2003, the Company began its journey toward
becoming an international leading full service company by
extending from a leading provider of new technology
licensing to integrated drug development, manufacturing
and products commercialization services for pharmaceutical

industry.

In 2004, while building new profit platforms for maximizing
profitability from existing products and strengthen the
Group’s competitive position, we slow down our core
business of technology transferring which has higher profit

margin but limited revenue and profit scalability.

When we launched our action plan of the transformation
last year, we have been going through the proverbial period
of short term pain for long term gain. Achievements and
challenges of the past year have proven us right on both
counts.

MBEE

—EENFRAGE (B2RBEZBRAF
(AR REMBLAR) ¥BEANERS
E-HE_ZENF+-_A=+—-HIEE K
EEEBEEENHAREES6,157,000T (Z2F
=4 : AR™35,680,0007T) - WEE(L & F A A
R #¥ 10683000 (T EZT=ZfF: AR¥
20,360,0007T) B EREF & A K10.0297
TL(ZZEZ=F: AR¥O0.0657T) " EEGTEE
REBEE_TTNF+_A=Z+—BLEFERH
KHE (ZEE=ZF FRO5EM) -

KO

RIZBZE=FFR FAAFEBIERBEEHIR
HHBEMEFRERERAEYRAE HENE
mEEERSE AR AEREEN2EEERE
NAMBERBHE-

R-_TTNF EEIHEN T AFIMEAF
B R R T AR R B 5 5 0 69 [R] B AN SR B O R B
B AS S EMEE U A KM E KB TR &
L RB AT EE-

REFETEHFELUE AKEEETEE MR
BMRH ZFUBMGSRENDR MAEEEFR
SH B IEAKH R ATE R H DB R F AR AFIROR
TEIEfE e



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2004

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FH&HE

MARKET OPPORTUNITY

Pharmaceutical companies are much relying on outsourcing
to help them meet growing demand and bring new drugs
to market more economically and quickly. The world turns
focus for this regard to China and other Asian countries to
capture the opportunities for outsourcing of integrated
pharmaceutical development in China.

GROWTH STRATEGY

We have adopted multi-growth engines strategy for high
speed and long-term growth of company. This strategy is
employed of multi-revenue models for confronting the realty
to diversify the risk and maximizing the profits from all
business cycles. We structured the company into five
business units, VP-Technology Transfer, VP-PDS
(Pharmaceutical Development Service), VP-CRS (Clinical
Research Service), VP-API (Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredient) and VP-Mart (Venturepharm-Mart) and they span
from molecule sources stage of pharmaceutical value chain
to commercialization of products to form a full service
company. With core competency of R&D capability at
sources of value chain, each unit can create and develop
business for each other to form efficiency and cost

structure.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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KEY 2004 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

Last year we launched an action plan focused on two key
priorities: expanding R&D efforts and building VP-Mart and
CRS business unit for growth by transformation of business
to confronting reality.

1. Maintaining a leading position on pharmaceutical R&D
sector in China

In 2004, we opened our brand new 300,000 square
meters R&D facility in Haikou city of Hainan Province.
One of the most beautiful cities in Asia, this state-of-
the-art R&D center will focus primarily on innovative
or Me-better product developments. To fulfill this goal,
we have established a much tied relationship with
Hainan Medical University to have the professors from
school of pharmacy to work in our new R&D center.
Meanwhile, with the Country strengthening the
application management, the Group continued to
expand R&D and application efforts. For the year
ended 31 December 2004, the Group has obtained 72
clinical permits and 23 manufacturing permits. With
accumulative total of 178 and 44 clinical permits and
manufacturing permits were obtained respectively.
Taking the Group to the pioneer position in the industry.
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As a result of our expanding R&D efforts, we gained
approval for products of our own brand

Supplementing the internal development through
partnerships and alliances, in 2004, we continued to
enhance our ties in both United Kingdom and North
America through key alliances. We have dramatically
increased our development efforts and currently have
more than 300 products in development with estimated
target of over RMB15 billions market in China. Our full
time scientific staff have grown over 200 and have
built over 13 technology platforms with over 40 patents
have been submitted.

Strengthening the services units

For maximum utilization of our R&D capability and
meeting the strong market trend of R&D outsourcing
from big pharmaceutical houses, the company builds
up international service related marketing development
units for promoting the PDS and CRS units, such as
technology licensing, clinical research, product
development, in-licensing and out-licensing of
products, co-development and co-marketing.
Integrated services enable Venturepharm to bring our
clients’ drug candidates from pre-clinical stage through
to clinical trials and, ultimately, commercialization.

We are now serving over 35 clients, including 8 from
international pharmaceutical companies. In 2004, PDS
and CRS achieved a turnover of RMB15,822,000 (2003:
RMB11,903,000) and RMB5,346,000 (2003:
RMB2,077,000), respectively. Under the transformation
strategy, by slowing down the activity of technology
transfer, promoting PDS, CRS and commercialisation
of own products, the business of the Company will
continue to maintain a sustainable growth.

The turnover analysis of Venturepharm for the year
2004 has clearly demonstrated the successful transition
of Venturepharm from a company, which has been
engaging R&D and technology transfer only, into a
fully integrated pharmaceutical services company,
which dedicated to R&D, services, manufacturing and
sales altogether.
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4. Building up the commercialization networks

VP-Mart, the commercialization unit of our company,
is the commercial solutions provider that offers sales
and marketing services designed to accelerate the
success of pharmaceutical products. VP-Mart is
engaged an earlier main role as developing synergistic
marketing partnership in China and different areas
around the world. Two of such relationships are with
VDM Health Care Inc and Profex Inc, a leading
franchise marketing company in China and leading
dermatology products promoting company in China,
respectively. They are serving to promote the products
from both Venturepharm and their clients.

DRIVING FORWARD

Many challenges lie ahead, our entire management team
is confident of where we stand today, as we benefit from a
right mix business that can capitalize on a variety of
opportunities and business cycles. Our VP-Mart unit and
CRS unit will lead the way to drive our business to a new

level for maximizing our investors return.

APPRECIATION

| wish to acknowledge our many partners who provide us
with ongoing encouragement of our business strategy.
Without the contribution of our employees, the trust of our
clients and the support of our shareholders, we could not
have progressed this far. With the vision and mission in
mind, we are in attempt to build up a world class Chinese’s
integrated pharmaceutical company.

William Xia GUO

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
22 March 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEESR RSN

1. OPERATING RESULTS
Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Group achieved
a turnover of approximately RMB36,157,000 which includes
income of approximately RMB28,536,000 deriving from
technology transfer and contracted pharmaceutical
development services and approximately RMB5,346,000
deriving from clinical research services and other sales
activities. Compared with last year’s total turnover, it
represents a slight increase of approximately 1.3%.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin was 51.9% for the
year under review compared with that of 79.8% for the last
year. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to increasing competition in technology transfer
market.

General and administrative expenses increased by 24% to
approximately RMB11,867,000. The increase was
attributable mainly to increase in staff cost of approximately
RMB600,000 and post-listing expenses including sponsor’s
fee, auditor’'s remuneration, etc.
RMB1,500,000.

of approximately

For the period ended 31 December 2004, the Group
recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately RMB10,683,000, representing a decrease
of 47% as compared to that of approximately
RMB20,360,000 for last year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

The Group has maintained sound financial position in this
year. During the year, the Group financed its operations
mainly with its operating revenue, internal resources and
net proceeds from placement on 2003. As at 31 December
2004, the Group’s current assets amounted to about
RMB 74,671,000 of which approximately RMB17,971,000
was cash and bank deposits. The Group did not have any
bank and other borrowings during the period under review,
the gearing ratio as measured by bank and other
borrowings over total assets was zero (2003: zero).
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Capital Structure

There has not been any change to the capital structure of
the Company since that date.

Prospects of New Products and Markets

The Group has progressed to expand its capacities in
clinical research services, manufacturing, marketing and
sales. In the reporting period, it has entered into several
discussions with potential strategic partners to complement
its future development. The Group has undertook a
transition into a fully integrated pharmaceutical services
organization and has structured its business into five core
business units, VP-Technology Transfer, VP-PDS
(Pharmaceutical Development Service), VP-CRS (Clinical
Research Service), VP-API (Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredient) and VP-Mart (Venturepharm-Mart).

A number of new products are scheduled to be launched
in the consumer market in the first half of 2005 and the
sales revenue is expected to grow in line with the business
plan. The newly established research center in Hainan
Province has developed in good shape in accordance with
the original plan and has retained quality research analysts
for selected new projects.

During the year, there were a number of exchange visits
between some international organizations in exploring
potential strategic alliance opportunities. No formal
agreement has yet been entered into as at the reporting
date.

Significant Investment

The Company invested its surplus fund through its principal
bank in investment grade target redemption bond. In
addition to that, on January 2004, the Group had invested
into a long term investment of RMB6,080,000 for a
production plant and own 19% of the equity interest of it.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated
Companies

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.
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Comments on Segmental Information

No geographical segment analysis is presented as all
assets and operations of the Group for the periods are
located in the PRC. No business segment analysis is
presented as all operations of the Group for the periods
are related to pharmaceutical research and development,
registration, application and testing.

Employees

The total number of employees in the Group was 205 as at
31 December 2004 (2003: 184). The Group’s remuneration
policy is basically determined by the performance of
individual employees. In addition to salaries and bonuses,
employee benefits included medical and pension
contributions and share options schemes.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2004, the Group pledged its bank
deposits of RMB9,811,000 and investment in securities of
RMB16,553,000 as security for the general banking facilities
granted to the Group. (2003: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Other than those disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 30 June 2003, the Group does not have any other
plan for material investments or capital assets for the
coming year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had operating lease
commitments in respect of rented office premises of
approximately RMB12,886,000 (2003: RMB14,559,000).
Apart from that, as at 31 December 2004 and 2003, the
Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period under review, the Group’s transactions
were substantially denominated in Renminbi (*“RMB”) and
about 76% of the cash and bank deposits were in either
Hong Kong or United States dollars. Since RMB is pegged
to both the Hong Kong and United State dollars, the Board
considers that the potential foreign exchange exposure of
the Group is limited. The Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposure from time to time and will engage
appropriate hedging activities should needs arise.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2004, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities (2003: Nil).

2. BUSINESS REVIEW

VP-Mart (Venturepharm-Mart)

Along with the Group’s growth strategy to retain certain
drug projects with best commercialization potential for own
commercialization in order to seek long term business
benefits, marketing activity in the consumer market
commenced in 2004 as scheduled. There are 5 new
products launched in the market and achieved satisfactory
result for the period. The sales network basically covers
the whole PRC. The growth in this area is expected to be
high. Few new products already planned to launch in the
first half of 2005 and more products are anticipated to be
launched in the market in the second half of 2005. The
management believes the sales generated from this area
will become the major contribution to the future success of
the Group.

VP-PDS (Pharmaceutical Development Service)

While the current market demand for Chinese
pharmaceutical technology service in local and abroad is
huge, the Group has been actively capitalized the business
opportunities. Leverage on its own advanced research and
development technology and comprehensive customer
service, the Group actively expands the client base from
technology transfer to PDS service, maximizing the value
of clients and increasing the income of the Group. As at 31
December 2004, the Group has 65 PDS clients and
achieved turnover of RMB15,822,000 for the period ended.
With the expected strategic transformation in success by
the Group, PDS is going to become one of the business
growing points of the Company in future.

HREE

R_FENFE+_A=1+—0 AEEALEEM
HARBE(ZEE=F &)

2. ¥KEE

VP-Mart (B2 W 15)
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VP-Technology Transfer

During the reporting period, the Group has signed
technology transfer contracts for 36 drug products with a
total contract value of approximately RMB29,610,000. Total
number of technology transfer exceeds 200 since the
Group’s establishment. The team continues to develop the
client base and secures high quality clients, among our
clients, over 35% are listed companies in the stock market.
Due to increasing competition, mainly due to increased
number of applications to The State Food and Drug
Administration (“SFDA”) on similar products by other
research organizations, the average selling price and profit
margin on technology transfer sales has decreased during
the year. In view of such business environment, the Group
has focused on improved customer services and increase
in the activity of customer visits. This achieved satisfactorily
result in customer retention, higher customers’ satisfaction
and better relationship with clients.

VP-CRS (Clinical Research Service)

There are 20 clinical development contracts signed with
total contract value increased from RMB12,000,000 in 2003
to approximately RMB15,581,000 in this year. The increase
was due to the successful of the Group’s strategy to expand
into this market. The activity and capability of the CRS has
significantly increased as a result of effective training and
recruitment of high quality staff. A number of contracts
involving both domestic and multinational companies were
also signed in the reporting period, pertaining to product
registration, product and technology development services.

VP-API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient)

A number of research projects on APls have been
developed into various stages during the period. Due to
the different nature of requirements for the production of
various type of APls, the group has by itself or cooperated
with other parties established various production plants in
different scales and in different provinces within the PRC.
According to the market and customers requirements, the
Group has developed production of 7 APIs and made
enhancement on more than 10 intermediate ingredients
during the year. The management team had participated
into a number of international exhibitions in Tokyo, Belgium
and Shanghai during the period in promoting the API
products, brand building and conducting market research.
The staff quality has been improved and strengthened
during the process and turned into a very strong
development force for the future.

VP — 3 17 88 2
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Research & Development

The Group’s portfolio covers all major and high growth
therapeutic areas such as diabetes, heart diseases, cancer,
AIDS and allergy.

The Group’s product pipeline has now expanded into a
total of 470 products with 80 new projects initiated since
the start of year 2003. In the same said period, 56 new
products were submitted to The State Food and Drug
Administration (“SFDA") for Clinical Study Permits (“CSP’s”)
while 72 new CSP’s were granted to the Group. The total
number of CSP’s accumulated by the Group climbed to
178. In the same said period, 36 Manufacturing Permit
applications were submitted to the SFDA and 23 new
Manufacturing Permits were granted. The total number of
Manufacturing Permits accumulated by the Group climbed
to 44.

For the past twelve months, 20 new patent applications
were submitted to the State Intellectual Property Office
(“SIPO”), making a total of 48 patents applications as at 31
December 2004 by the Group since the start of its
operation.

International Collaboration

The Group maintains close ties with established overseas
practitioners aiming at cooperative relationship with them.
During the period under review, several service agreements
were signed with foreign companies pertaining to drug and
medical device registration services. In June 2004, a senior
delegation from Johnson & Johnson visited the Group’s
Beijing office paving the way for potential strategic alliance
between the Group and its China based subsidiary. In
January 2005, Hannah InterActions from UK also visited us
for potential business opportunities.

W R B &
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES TO ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS
XEGCEEREREGERILE

Business objectives for the period from 1 January 2004 to
31 December 2004 as stated in the Prospectus

of the Company dated 30 June 2003
HNEARR=_ZSZE=FRA=THHHEZ
ERERFMBH_ZFETNF-—HA—HZE
TEENFEtT A=t -HLEZEKBEE

Actual Business Progress
ERXBER

Drug product pipeline expansion
hREMRE

1. To achieve total number of 340 accumulated drug
projects to be carried out to the following stages of
development:

#R BT 5158 3% 0 B 2 % I8 B 48 BUE BB401E

16

e Pre-Clinical and pending Clinical Study Permit
(180).
W PR BT T 9% M £ L B PR AfF 55 7 AT 38 (180)°

e  Pending New Drug Certificates/Drug Manufacturing
F’ermits or Approval for Standardized Drugs (86).
FMTEEE ERAESFIEZEERRX

@®°

e New Drug Certificates/Drug Manufacturing Permits
or Approvals for Standardized Drugs obtained
(74).

ERENERE BREETTEEEERIX
(74)°

Evaluate pre-clinical works for Category A drug
projects.
AHEARERIER ZRKAT TIE-

File 4 patent applications for registering proprietary
technologies and processes with the State Intellectual
Property Office

RMERMNBAEERRRAAZARMEIE 2 ENRE-

72 clinical permits were obtained in 2004.
Accumulated total 178.

R_ZTNFE BEIS725RERT A& REA
B A1785K e

23 manufacturing permits were obtained in
2004. Accumulated total 44.

MR_ETWF ERG23REETAE REH
R4 -

So far there are 4 Category A projects under
development.
ES AEARERIAR EEME-

The Group had submitted 48 patent
applications since its inception.
AEBEKZBEIERZISEEF A
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Business objectives for the period from 1 January 2004 to
31 December 2004 as stated in the Prospectus

of the Company dated 30 June 2003
BUEARRAR=-BE=ZFRAA=Z+THHEZ
ERERFMBH_ZFETNF-—HA—HZE
TEENFEtT A=t -HLEZEKBEE

Commercialization of drug projects and marketing
BERBEERELCRTHZER

1. Recruit 8 marketing professionals focusing on different
regions of the market.
BESREXMGHEAR HRAETRAMSREE-

2. Recruit marketing professional for the North America
marketing and sales support office.

RUAXHHGHEBRREESERETRBEZEXTHEREA

o

]

\

3. Continue to cooperate with pharmaceutical
manufacturer in the PRC for production of the Group’s
drug products which fall within the therapeutic areas
identified in earlier period under the Venturepharm &
ZDbrand name.
EEERTBERENAFLEAEBR ZE R U
Venturepharm& % & mhg o B & E e P BEmiEE &
GEIC

4. Expand marketing and sales force in PRC such as
Shanghai and Beijing.
ERE (Pl EERIER) mBAHISHEREESKME-

Actual Business Progress
ERXBER

The Group has recruited 35 marketing
professionals focusing on different regions of
the market. In addition, the Group has built
up cooperation agreement with a sales and
distribution company in Hainan Province for
the distribution of the Group’s products.

AEBECHBEBREXNEHEAER SFIAE
ARTIS RSN AEE D SR E —KH
ERDHARRDHEAEBERI LA EHH-

1 market professional has been hired during
the period.
HANEREHIETISHEEERAS

Continue with the cooperation with Sanmenxia
Sinoway Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd. in the
production of the Group’s drug products.
MER-—FIREREREARARAIFEEDN
SEEYESD-

The Group is exploring a potential joint-venture
opportunity with a Shanghai distributor for the
sales and distribution of the Group’s product.
REBESRE—FR FBEIHEMRHEE RS H
AEBEMKUEELEIHE-
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Business objectives for the period from 1 January 2004 to
31 December 2004 as stated in the Prospectus

of the Company dated 30 June 2003
BUEARRAR=-BE=ZFRAA=Z+THHEZ
ERERFMBH_ZFETNF-—HA—HZE
TEENFEtT A=t -HLEZEKBEE

Expansion into overseas markets
EEBIITIS

1. Set up marketing offices in Hong Kong and India.

EEBRHNERIDIGHERERER-

2. Set up a marketing and sales support office in North
America.

EAXBRIMGHEREEXERER-

Manufacturing
BE

Commence scale-up development from laboratory-scale to
production-scale manufacture and manufacturing activities
in the Group’s GMP compliant facility near Beijing.
EARSECNIERMT 2 GMPER R ERFARENFRE AE
RERBBAZLEERBR 2 ZEXRB-

Actual Business Progress
ERXBER

The establishment of branch offices in other
cities is delayed to 2005 subject to review of
market demand.
EEMBETRID AP EEELCE T HF-
BEEERDISFEK

Several companies from the USA and UK were
in discussion for contract provision of services,
including clinical development and product
registration.
ZHRREEBEREE 2 RFIERIBHRS (21
MRIKFENREMTM) 2B ETE-

Due to the different nature of requirements for
the production of various type of APls, the
group has by itself or cooperated with other
parties established various production plants
in different scales and in different provinces
within the PRC.
HREEBREBROZEERBIEERR
FEBEAETBETEENBE NI EEMA LK
MAEREZZELEERSE -
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE ISSUING OF THE NEW SHARES BITHRAESRERR

The Company was listed on the GEM on 10 July 2003 by NN A5 BB & 90,000,000 R —EZE =
placing 90,000,000 shares. The net proceeds after FHrA+HERBERET -RNKBAEBRYLE
deduction of related expenses amounted to approximately FIT 15 5% 18 % %8 49 /28,000,000 T ©

HK$28 million.

For the period from the listing
date to 31 December 2004
tTEHEE_ZETNE
TZA=+—HLHHE

Actual
amount used Per Prospectus
ERCRASE RERERRAL

HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
For R&D activities (note 1) PR 3 (B RE1) 517 3,030
For marketing activities and R % H# B R
brand building (note 2) B mhg (FtEE2) 2,790 8,109
For GMP plant establishment R B SL 7 & GMP
HE Z = 7,662 7,000
For overseas market expansion (note 3) AREEFINTIS
(B 5£3) 115 1,583

General working capital —REEED 1,000 1,000

Total &t 12,084 20,722

Notes: B 5

1. Lower expenditure incurred as at end of 31 December 2004 1. AREEERREBEHEHE CEERBHERTEE
was a result of management being more cautious in screening MABERE 2 MISRE WR _SZENF+ A
suitable partners for the projects and in assessing the market ST HERA&REACTIHERE-RYEEHER
development of respective therapeutic areas. Project HIWREEE 2 MiGHREE BRI SETE
spending will increase as planned once suitable partners e
are identified and appropriate market condition established.

2. During the period, the marketing activities and brand building 2. BN MEHEEDRBELMEEESEREPERE:
activities were focused in PRC and thus less cost was HTEE CRARE - EERPHETEZ G
incurred. Such expenses in this area will increase when more TEBNIRE Lt E 2 B A AT e
overseas activities are incurred in coming periods.

3. Overseas expansion activities will be activated in coming 3. #EFEBIMGSZTBENTRBEER-
periods.

The balance of the proceeds raised will continue to be EESHEREMABEEERNAAT Z ER

used in the projects disclosed in the Company’s Prospectus ZRANFFEER F MBEEERERT -8

and is currently deposited in banks. The Directors consider EDAFRESXEFEERUARNALT S €

that the net proceeds will be sufficient for the requirement ER AR E B ERE-

of future business objectives as stated in the Company’s

Prospectus.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, aged 40, is the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, Managing Director and Joint Chief
Technology Officer of the Group. Mr. Guo is responsible
for strategic planning and development, overall
management and R&D activities of the Group. Mr. Guo
obtained with a Master degree in science from University
of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. Guo has also completed
various approved courses for the degree of Master of
Business Administration in the Heriot-Watt University. Before
establishing the Group in December 1998, Mr. Guo had
worked for two pharmaceutical companies in Canada,
namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm Limited, both
are pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research
scientist and process development manager, respectively.
Mr. Guo has approximately 10 years experience in research,
pharmaceutical development and management in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Guo is a member of the
American Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists and the
National Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, aged 37, is an executive Director.
Dr. Song is responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and
also the head of the Human Resources Management
Department of the Group. Dr. Song graduated from China
Concord Medical University with a Doctorate degree in
clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also a Registered
Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2000, Ms. Song had served as general manager
of Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

Dr. David Xuesong GAO, aged 38, is the Deputy General
Manager of the Group. Dr. Gao is responsible for
Pharmaceutical Development (R&D) of the Group since
December 1998. Mr. Gao graduated from Chemical
Research Institute, Chinese Academy of Science with a
Ph.D. degree in science in July 1994. The research areas
of Dr. Gao were synthesis chemistry and polymer chemistry.
Dr. Gao has completed over 10 complex medical chemical
drug entity synthesis projects. He has published various
articles domestically and internationally. He won the Best
Young Scientist Awards in Chemistry from the Chinese
Academy of Science in 1990 and 1992.

BITES
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=

Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc.Z2 & 8 °

AREFBEL 7R HTEF-RELEELEKE
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. FENG Tao, aged 37, is a director of NewMargin and is
also nominated as a non-executive Director by C Tech Fund.
Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science from the
Department of Statistics and Applied Probability from the
University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has been
serving as the Vice President Officer of the The Foundation
of Science and Technology for Development of the State
Planning Committee, State Economic and Trade Commission
of the PRC and China Science Academy since September
1999. He was appointed as non-executive Director in
August 2002.

Mr. WU Xin, aged 33, is a non-executive Director nominated
by C Tech Fund. Mr. Wu is a vice-president of NewMargin.
Mr. Wu obtained his Master of Science degree from Stanford
University in Engineering-Economic Systems in 1994 and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of lllinois in May 1993. Prior to joining NewMargin,
Mr. Wu worked in Chase Capital Partners, an investment
firm, and at Robertson Stephens & Company, an investment
firm based in San Francisco. He was appointed as non-
executive Director in August 2002.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, aged 40, is a non-executive
director. Dr. Zhang is the former chief executive officer of
Chipscreen Biosciences Ltd., a leading Chinese biotech
company specialized in innovated cancer, diabetes, and
osteoporosis drug discovery. Dr. Zhang had worked with
KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse First Boston. Dr. Zhang holds
an M. D from Tianjin Medical University, Ph. D from
University of Pennsylvania, and an MBA from the University
of Chicago, USA.

FBTES

BEE L 375 BNewMarginz % - WEC
Tech FundfiZ & HEJEAITE F B EER — N
JL= % /X A fEUniversity of Alberta®t 5t & & F
BMEBEMBESETENFEEBE AN
FNAR-—BEHERERAZEREEZFER
B RELERESTESRIEF-HRZ
TE_F\ARZERIENTES-

KRS HE 335% EC Tech Fundiz & B IEH 1T
B EoREE ENewMarginZ BlAE B — N
NEFELNBEAZESIREERREERE
TEN ER—NAN=FRAEFINEFRARER
BEHIRES L 24 INENewMarginl -
R A& TR —E % & A F Chase Capital
Partnersk = & M « #% & A & Robertson
Stephens & Company °» FR —_ZZ —F N\ A
ZHERERITES-

SRIRE L4058 JEMTTE R - R IE L BERIIK
BEDRRRE ZRARR—RPEMEBZ2HN
CRBIERERE BESHAIMENMBEEQF-
B HBRKPMGHRL A E I EEEE K
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HABHBRIFERE L
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Ming Yu, aged 73, is an independent non-executive
Director and is the chairman of the audit committee. Mr.
Wu is a member of the education committee of the China
(Hainan) Reform Development Research Institute, a member
of Standing Committee of China Association of Science
and Technology; President of Chinese Society of Technology
Economics; Honorary President of China Society of Science
and Science Technology Policy Research and Vice-
President of China Society of Land Economics Research.
Mr. Wu has held the post of Vice Minister of the
Development Research Center of the State Council, Vice
Minister of the State Science and Technology Commission;
President of China Technology Economic Research Institute;
Vice President of China Society of Science and Science
Technology Policy; Economist of Economy Research
Institute of the State Council and President of Asia-Pacific
Research Institute. He was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in August 2002.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALQS, aged 44, is an independent
non-executive Director. He holds an MBA from the Columbia
University in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for
Bristol-Myers Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was
to start up the consumer over-the-counter business of
Bristol-Myers Squibb in 1994. He became Chairman and
President of Bristol-Myers Squibb China from 1997 to 2000.
Prior to working in China, Mr. Contomichalos held various
key consumer marketing and business development
positions with Bristol-Myers Squibb in the USA and Canada
and has about 18 years of experience in this field. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in August
2002.

Mr. WANG Hong Bo, aged 35, is an independent non-
executive director. He is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wang graduated from
Nan Kai University with a master degree. Mr. Wang is
presently a finance manager of TCL Group Limited. Mr.
Wang has over 10 years of experience in auditing. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in
September 2004.

BYFHITES
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group’s senior management comprises the following
employees:

Mr. Wesley Yiu Wai TONG, aged 46, is the Chief Financial
Officer and the company secretary and the head of the
Accounting & Finance department of the Group. Mr. Tong
holds a MBA degree from the Open University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tong is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has about 20 years working experience in accounting
and financial management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Tong worked for a number of leading global financial
institutions. He was the Executive Director of the Controllers
Department of Goldman Sachs for about 6 years. He had
also worked in Nomura for about 2 years and Merrill Lynch
for about 9 years. Mr. Tong joined the Group in August
2003.

Dr. Tom Tuo Jin, aged 52, is the Joint Chief Technology
Officer. Dr. Jin holds M. D from University of Toronto and
Ph. D from Hokkaido University. Dr. Jin engaged in
education and pharmaceutical R&D in Japan, USA Novartis
and Canada for years. Dr. Jin was a researcher with
Aventis-Pasteur (USA), Supervisor of Formulation Division
with BioDelivery Science (USA), as well as Associate
Professor with Long Island University. Dr. Jin is the dean
of Sinican Institute. Dr. Jin published 25 articles in
periodical and applied for 10 patents. Dr. Jin is a member
of American Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists.

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, aged 44, is the co-head of the Group’s
Business Development Department (International Division).
He is also the Chief Executive Officer of P.K. Pharmatech
in India. Dr. Gupta has obtained his degree of bachelor of
medicine and bachelor of surgery in December 1982. He
worked with Lupin Laboratories Limited of India before he
joined the Group in December 2000 and was seconded to
the exclusive marketing and distribution agent in Hong Kong
in 1996. He was responsible for marketing and distributing
of product of Lupin Group in the Asia region. He has 14
years of experience in the field of pharmaceutical industry.
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Mr. Wallace Xinhua TAO, aged 35, is the head of the Sales
Department. Mr. Tao graduated from Lanzhou University in
June 1992 with a Bachelor of Science specialising in
organic chemistry. He has worked as the director of sales
and marketing for a domestic pharmaceutical company.
From 1993, he has been working in the areas of corporate
development, training, sales and marketing for several
pharmaceutical companies. He has 10 years of experience
in pharmaceutical marketing in the PRC. Mr. Tao joined the
Group in May 2002.

Mr. Michael Kun LIU, aged 37, is the head of the Medicinal
Drug Entity Division, (Pharmaceutical Development, R&D).
Mr. Liu obtained a Master degree in Pharmaceutical Science
from Osaka University in Japan in March 1998. He worked
for Number 6 Northeastern Pharmaceutical Factory between
1991 and 1994 in the area of new product development
and was involved in several new product programs. Mr.
Kun joined the Group in June 2002 and has 12 years of
experience in the field of pharmaceutical industry.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associate are set out in notes 11 and 12, respectively, to
the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2004 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 40 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Company during the year are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Managing Director:
William Xia GUO
Executive Directors:
Maria Xuemei SONG

David Xuesong GAO
Uri Tak Kau LAW

(appointed on 18 March 2004)
(resigned on 29 September 2004)

Non-Executive Directors:

FENG Tao

WU Xin

Philip Pak Yiu YUEN
Nathan Xin ZHANG
Derek LEE

(resigned on 18 March 2005)
(appointed on 2 February 2005)
(resigned on 19 March 2004)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

WU Ming Yu

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WANG Hong Bo (appointed on 29 September 2004)
Apart from David Xuesong GAO, Nathan Xin ZHANG and
WANG Hong Bo, which do not have a service contract,
each of the executive directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for three years from 10 July
2003 (the “Listing Date”). Each of the executive directors
and non-executive directors was appointed as director of
the Company respectively subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service
contracts, if applicable.

In accordance with Articles 95 and 112 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, WU Xin, Nathan Xin ZHANG and
WANG Hong Bo retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.
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Save as disclosed above, no directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 December 2004, the interests and short positions of
the directors, chief executives of the Group and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to rules 5.41 to 5.49 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

BEXHBEEEN BREERRAEFASLE
BZES HEILEMAKER —FRTEL
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HEEE (ERREARAEGKN ([EFHRHAE
&) ) EEXVER) 2R G5 - HERGOKESFTRES
(Q)ERBEZFLFRABKRAEXVHETRESH
mEgArQ T&%‘ﬁ% BEXSHBRARE ([HZ
Fil) 2= RAR (BEESREZFRBERK
1&%%%1%%@32”‘MEWE?%%%Z*& SEAR)
3 (b)IRIEFE F Kk B E G0 5 35215 BF AZ &
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company REXATROREBROZHR
(1) The Company (1) A7
Number of

shares in which

Number of shares interested under
in which interested  physically settled Approximate
(other than under equity derivative percentage
Type of equity derivatives) REBENLEE  Total number of interest
Name interest Capacity BEREZRHAEE BASEIA of shares EREH
i3] EHER 5% (REFTETERS) BEEZZRAHA R4 4 8 Al
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 7,200,000 16,310,377 4.53
BE fEA EaEEA
William Xia GUO Corporate  Held by a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 41.51
Bl NG corporation (Note 1)
mXEHEERE (M)
William Xia GUO Corporate  Held by a controlled 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.44
EiE] N corporation (Note 2)
mREHEERE (Hi2)
Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings MEE1: 292§l % B Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., is 47.63 per cent. directly held by Mr. William Inc. A FBE LA EERH47.63%M %
Xia GUO and 34.68 per cent. held by Mr. William LA %2 B3 28 B % 4 5 #8 Winsland Agents
Xia GUO through Winsland Agents Limited, his Limited (RARBRELZFSMAT A
wholly and beneficially owned company HrEE2EEREE) FHE34.68%K
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. o
Note 2. The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets MFE2: 42 4l % B Bright Excel Assets
Limited, is 100 per cent. beneficially owned by Limited% &0 A% # B Venturepharm
Venturepharm Holdings Inc.. Holdings Inc. Bz # A ©
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Note 3:

Various interests of the directors and chief
executives pursuant to physically settled equity
derivatives are through share options granted under
the Pre-IPO share option scheme. Details of which
are set forth as follows:
Number of shares
in which interested
under physically settled
equity derivatives as at
31.12.2004
R-EENFE+=-A=+—H
Name REBEYWHEERATEIR
% & FERBZEZROEE
William Xia GUO 7,200,000
NE

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a
vesting schedule, pursuant to which may be
exercised up to 30 per cent. of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2003, up to another 30 per cent.
of the underlying shares after 31 December 2004
and the remaining balance after 31 December 2005.
These options will expire ten years after the date of
grant. Mr. GUO has also undertaken to the Stock
Exchange that he will not exercise his options
granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

M3 BFBEFRIEBTBRAEREMEERSE
METAEBRT2ZHRER/EBRE
ERNGE-EIE Yo - )i el
BERERE-FBRINDOT:

Date of grant Exercise price

®mE B TEE

20 June 2003 HK$0.32
—EE=-FA=+H 0.327% 7T

MELREBEZBREBOM S EERE Rt
BAR_EZE=F+_A=+—HEAETZ
R N30% ERE R_TTMF+ A
ST HRITEAZRAERMNER30%2E
g R —_FEEAF+_A=+—RRITEHK
TZERE-FRBERESRRLARER+FE
e SBESEAETRD AR PTG R BT B R
AE12EARN BHTAETERREERARESE
BB A G B R 2 B g
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(2) A subsidiary of the Company — Beijing Dezhong
iy # 5 R 2 A7l

—Venture Pharmaceutical Technology Development
Company Limited

Capital contribution
on a Sino-foreign
co-operative

joint venture

(2) XRalzlEAa— Ik RER

r|g+
3
B
iy
b
NS
Xt

Approximate
percentage

of contributions
to shareholding
in joint venture

Name Type of interest  Capacity R—BHIHEE REELERE
®E BRER L) FELECHER ZEZHABARL
William Xia GUO Corporate Held by a controlled corporation (Note 1) US$111,000 12.83
$E NGl mEEHEERE (FE1) 111,000% 7T

Note 1: The interest is held by Beijing Venturepharm Biotech 1 BRELALEREZEVEEREERA

Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited, a
limited liability company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), for which 99 per
cent. of its shareholding is beneficially held by Mr.
William Xia GUO and 1 per cent. held by Dr. Maria
Xuemei SONG.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2004, none
of the directors or chief executives had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the measuring of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed, to have such provisions of the
SFO); (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the
rules 5.41 to 5.49 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AEE -ZAR B RRPFEAREM
B[R] FMRIzERAFH
V%UBERTELEEERTE 51%
Al RESEELHE-

BEXPEEEN R _ZTEF+_A=+—
- EFREBTRABMER AR SEEM
HEEE (EERES RHEHRGIEXVEL) 2k
RO RESFTHEEQREBEESRHERK
PIEXVERE 7R FE 87 BAME AN A &) M B 2 P
ZIEEDESIOAR (BRESFREESLME K
PIZEGEXREFRR BRI ERTIRE)
%k (b)1R % 78 77 N HIE 15 0] 58 35215 7B 51| A% 5 17
Pt & se il 2 (RIS SOX B+ 3 (c)IRIBAIFIR
EHRANES A1EL 491G 2 R E 2 E AT TR

N

=



VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED Annual Report 2004

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements,
no other contracts of significance to which the Company
and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Venturepharm Inc. (“VP Inc.”), a subsidiary of the
Company’s shareholder, engages the Group to research
and develop seven new drugs and provide related
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services. According to the agreements entered into by VP
Inc. and the Group, approximately 20 to 40 per cent. of the
contract sum is payable by VP Inc. within seven days after
the application to The State Food and Drug Administration
of the People’s Republic of China (the “SFDA”) for clinical
study permit is accepted; approximately 30 per cent. within
seven days after obtaining clinical study permit from the
SFDA; approximately 20 to 40 per cent. after completion of
clinical trial with submission of a full report to VP Inc.; and
approximately 10 per cent. within seven days after obtaining
new drug certificate from the SFDA. The total contract value
is RMB6.6 million, which were, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, conducted in the normal course of
business at prices and terms no less than those charged
to and contracted with other third party customers of the
Group. During the year, the Group received RMB636,000
from VP Inc. for these services provided. The Group was
granted a waiver covering the period from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2005 from strict compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules.

EEREXRGHNzES

BRI 5 A M FE2bT IR BEE I RERKFAML
AEE BEFEARAREEFAMNBARRE
FETR A RARR CESFRNETERAHEH
BEEAERZEREN-

BEXS

NN E IR E 2 W& A FlVenturepharm Inc. ([ VP
Inc.]) ZREAKEHRT LFAE - BNELIEME
BB RE M RBIE R - RIBVP Inc. B
EBEIS 2 W% VP Inc. BR R E AR KR E
AEMEMEEEER ((BRXRMEMEEE
BR]ZXEBRMARTUZEBFERTHAX
NANBLFEN20E40%  BEERERERE
BEEBERZBARMRAFAZTRLBARNZNL
30% : MK ERRABR I MVP Inc IRRZ TBME
B ZIFH20840%  WHRISEREMEREE

BEARM6,600,000C- A AR EEREFHEELD
TDRBREBERRRTENI AT FAEER
ME=FRP ZERREEIT Y ZIERMEI L
FRREBERAARME 2 ZERBUWEVP Inc. A
R#¥636,000 A EMABBAE =TT AHF
+Z A=+ —HILHE AEEERRE FA
B & BT AR LT AR Al

31



BERREEARAT —TTFFH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

=

SERS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

1.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the
shareholder on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) in order to recognise and reward the
contribution of certain directors, senior management
and advisers, the details of which are set out in the
paragraphs headed “Share Option Schemes” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus. As at 20 June 2003,
options comprising a total of 11,520,000 underlying
shares were granted. As at 31 December 2004, the
options outstanding are 11,520,000 and no options
granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed. Particulars
of the outstanding options which have been granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2004 are as follows:

Period during
which the options
remain exercisable

BERAMERABRESS

RAFBRBERER -_SE=F=F=+—
AEBsEEAERAMERESS (B
RAFRERATERETE]) UEERFE
ETEF aREEEBERBEZER 718
BN EREZM T [FERETE ] —B-R
—EE=FRNAZTH ARREERHSER
& $£11,520,0000% 18 B A% 10 < B AR i o 70 =
EENFE+=-A=+—H"11,520,00019 &
REMAKITE BRBEEXAHERAER
T EIRH 2 AR T T iE ek
MM —ZENFE+-A=+—0 1BEH
RAFRERAEBRESTEE R LA ®RT
B BRESFBEOT:

Number of underlying

Exercise price shares under the option

Name of grantees after the date of grant per share as at 31.12.2004
BRERRH R-ZZENF+=A=+—-H
ERAKRE AE&A FITEMR BRITEE BREMSRZEBROHE
William Xia GUO (Note 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 7,200,000
HE (HE1k2) T 0.32& 7T
Other participants (Note 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 2,520,000
Hih 28 E (51 R2) T 0.32& 7T
Other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0.40 1,800,000
Hih2m¥ (f:E3) T 0.40/% 7T
11,520,000
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Note 1: Options granted to each of them contain a vesting

schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30
per cent. of the underlying shares after 31
December 2003, (subject to note 2), up to another
30 per cent. of the underlying shares after 31
December 2004 and the balance after 31 December
2005.

Note 2: Each of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock

Exchange that they will not exercise their options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

Note 3: Options granted to an adviser contain a vesting

schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30
per cent. of the underlying shares after 31
December 2002, up to another 30 per cent. of the
underlying shares after 31 December 2003 and the
balance after 31 December 2004. The respective
grantee has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that
he will not exercise his options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme within the first 6
months from the Listing Date.

2. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme.

However, no option was granted by the Company
during the year and as at 31 December 2004.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 19
to the financial statements.

Valuation of share options

The options granted are not recognised in the financial
statements of the Group until they are exercised.

Other than the share option schemes as mentioned above,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate. None of the directors or chief
executives, nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of eighteen, had any rights to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

M1 WEERZBERESNSHRERRE &
b REAR-_TE=F+-A=+—
B & 770 1 2 70 ME B B 19 30% 2 8 i
EMFE2ZRRT) N -TTNF
TZRA=+—RETETZRIEHEK
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P 1
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fa] 5% EHEF

33



34

BERREEARAT —TTFFH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EFE

] &

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any directors, chief executives of

the Company, as at 31 December 2004, the interests and

short positions of person in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed

pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or

which were required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of

the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein

were as

follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

FERR

BARRESEREFEZTHRAEMM R-_TZTN
FH+ZA=+—H U TALHBEERRARZKRNG
RBBR D PR SOX B MAREE S R
f%%%ﬂhﬁﬂ&%S“%@ﬁ&%‘%mﬁf

&7 K BB 1610 5 XVED 55 33616 78 1) A RZ 16 P it
TR AR

REQXARGRAEABRG 25 A

Approximate

percentage
Name Capacity Long positions of interest
L ) %R EEHAEI
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 1) Beneficial owner 149,432,583 41.51
(ME5E1) ERBEAA
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Held by a controlled corporation 15,966,073 4.44
(F5E2) MEXEGEERE
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 15,966,073 4.44
(MzE2) ExERA
C Tech Fund Beneficial owner 80,736,558 22.43
EREAA
William Xia GUO (Note 1, 2 & 3) Beneficial owner and held by
#$E (B 2K%3) controlled corporations 181,709,033 50.48

ExBAARBTENEERE

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Inc.,
is 47.63 per cent. directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO
and 34.68 per cent. held by Mr. William Xia GUO through
Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and beneficially
owned company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited,
is 100 per cent. beneficially owned by Venturepharm
Holdings Inc..

Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., the shares in the number of 16,310,377 are
beneficially owned by Mr. William Xia GUO (including
7,200,000 shares underlying the options granted to him
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).

M5E1: F4EHIXE Venturepharm Holdings Inc.%
IR E L EEEFAA7.63% % LA R H
S0 & 5L 4 3% B Winsland Agents Limited (72
EEBEZHEESEMKY BB LE2EES

) E34.68%M -

Mfsro: #4145 E Bright Excel Assets Limited®
=B A% # i Venturepharm Holdings Inc. & #@
wma-

MI5E3: KR iE iBVenturepharm Holdings Inc.3% & 2
Rt 51 2F B S = B % HEH 16,310,377 Ak
D EFBEREERARERAERER
B P H 2 B R %17 27,200,0000% I%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2004, there
was no other person who was recorded in the register of
the Company as having interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company and
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

SPONSOR’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2004, neither the sponsor of the
Company, China Everbright Capital Limited (“China
Everbright”), nor its directors, employees or any of their
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules), had any
interest in any securities of the Company.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 25 June 2003, entered
into between the Company and DBS Asia Capital Limited
(“DBS”), DBS received, and will receive, fees for acting as
the Company’s sponsor for the periods of financial year
ended 31 December 2003 and two financial years
thereafter. However, the sponsor agreement was mutually
agreed to be terminated on 11 January 2004. JS Cresvale
Capital Limited was appointed to act as sponsor to the
Company with effect from 11 January 2004. However, the
sponsor agreement was mutually agreed to be terminated
on 27 May 2004. China Everbright was appointed to act as
sponsor to the Company with effect from 27 May 2004.
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Pursuant to the agreement dated 27 May 2004, entered
into between the Company and China Everbright, China
Everbright received, and will receive, fees for acting as the
Company’s sponsor for the periods of the financial year
commencing from (and including) 27 May 2004 and ending
on (and including) 31 December 2005 or the date the
agreement is terminated.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 36% of the Group’s sales. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 11% of the
sales of the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest
in the five largest customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries did not purchase,
sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed securities for
the year ended 31 December 2004.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Company has compiled with the board practices and
procedures as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2004,
which applied before the amendment of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and Rules on Corporate Governance Report on
1 January 2005. The Company will prepare a Corporate
Governance Report in accordance with Rule 18.44 of the
GEM Listing Rules for financial year ending 31 December
2005.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in July
2003 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports and
quarterly reports and internal control system of the Group
and provide advice and comments to the Board. The audit
committee has three members comprising the three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. WU Ming Yu,
Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS and Mr. WANG Hong Bo. Mr.
WU Ming Yu is the chairman of the audit committee.

The Group’s interim financial results for the six months
ended 30 June 2004, the quarterly financial results for the
three months ended 31 March 2004 and 30 September
2004 and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2004 have been reviewed by the audit
committee. The audit committee had held four meetings
during the current financial year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

William Xia Guo

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC, 22 March 2005
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
BEZNREXARLT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 40 to
80 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company'’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the
Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
as at 31 December 2004 and of the profit and cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

DELOITTE TOUGHE TOHMATSU
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2005
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

malER

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

2004 2003
—EENEF —EE=F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR TR ARET T
Turnover ERR 4 36,157 35,680
Cost of sales 5 & Bk AR (17,390) (7,211)
Gross profit =Xl 18,767 28,469
Other operating income H A48 & A 4,580 3,094
Administrative expenses TR X (11,867) (9,569)
Profit before taxation B 35 A& A 11,480 21,994
Taxation M1 (881) (1,506)
Profit after taxation before BREBERTDH
minority interests A% 3R 1 %= B 5 10,599 20,488
Minority interests DER R = 84 (128)
Profit for the year N 5 s 10,683 20,360
Dividends, proposed final e -E_TT =4
dividend of HKO0.5 cent per R RHAR B /%
ordinary share for 2003 T WA% 0.5 11 - 1,908
Earnings per share (RMB) BREMN (AR 8
- basic — &K 0.0297 0.0650
- diluted —#8 0.0294 0.0647
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEBEBERRBR

At 31 December 2004 A=—ZZNF+-_A=+—H

2004 2003
—EEME —EE=f&
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR T ARET T
Non-current Assets EMBNE E
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRR 9 6,256 4,721
New drug technology B 23] 10 2,510 =
Interest in an associate N RN B s 12 2,235 —
Investments in securities BHEIRE 13 22,633 25,906
33,634 30,627
Current Assets MEE E
Work-in-progress £8 & 14 25,120 19,320
Trade receivables W E 5B 15 11,513 1,634
Other receivables, deposits H o JE W SRR
and prepayments Hz/i\&iﬁﬁw)\ 16 17,675 8,094
Amounts due from related JE Uy B 5 A Bl SR IE
companies 17 2,392 2,651
Pledged bank deposits EHEHRITFE R 9,811 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIRE 8,160 33,153
74,671 64,852
Current Liabilities mE A G
Other payables H th & 5 3R IB 1,941 1,543
Receipt-in-advance T8 U 5K IE 3,721 2,208
Dividend payable JE - AR B 54 =
Tax payable JE 5 3 18 454 697
6,170 4,448
Net Current Assets mENEERE 68,501 60,404
Total Assets less Current Liabilities #@EER R AE 102,135 91,031
Minority Interests DR R S 3,190 870
98,945 90,161
Capital and Reserves & A K2 7 s
Share capital [N 18 38,160 38,160
Reserves (ke 60,785 52,001
98,945 90,161

The financial statements on pages 40 to 80 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22
March 2005 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. William Xia GUO
DIRECTOR

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
DIRECTOR

BN FA0EF0E U BHREN_ZEZTRF =
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BALANCE SHEET
EEBER

As at 31st December, 2004 RA=—ZZENE+=-A=+—A

2004 2003
—EEME —ET=F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt % AR TR ARET T
Non-current Assets FEMEE E
Property, plant and equipment M BE KRR g 51 31
Interests in subsidiaries NN ol E 11 42,363 39,936
Investments in securities BHERE 13 16,553 25,906
58,967 65,873
Current Assets MBNEE
Other receivables H fib JfE Ug 51 1E 1,019 878
Amount due from a related JE W B 3 A Bl 3R IA
company 17 25 25
Pledged bank deposits EHEHRITER 9,811 =
Bank balances R1T 454 442 5,264
11,297 6,167
Current Liabilities ik R=NE
Other payables H th JE 5 kI8 657 546
Dividend payable JE 5 R B 54 =
711 546
Net Current Assets MEE EFRE 10,586 5,621
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEERRDERE 69,553 71,494
Non-Current Liability EMBAE
Amount due to a subsidiary RN NG B 2,693 2,472
66,860 69,022
Capital and Reserves & AR K {7 4
Share capital [N 18 38,160 38,160
Reserves & 20 28,700 30,862
66,860 69,022
Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG HE L4 RENEL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR £= ==
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HEEmBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

Statutory
enterprise
expansion  Accumu-
Share Share  Special Capital ~ Statutory fund lated
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve AELE profits Total
RE  RHEE HHRE EARE ATRE BREE  RHET CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
(note 20)  (note 20)  (note 20)  (note 20)
(Matoo) (Wst20)  (Msk20)  (Ki&F20)
At 1 January 2003 W-ZZ=F—-F—H 8,402 (2,418) - 6,622 1,998 5,181 17,529 37314
Effect of Group EEEA Y2
Reorganisation (6,039) - 6,039 - - - - -
Capitalisation issue REEERELES
during the year 26,257 (20,529) - (5,728) - - - -
Issue of shares AREMETRR
on placing 9,540 29,574 - - - - - 39,114
Expenses paid in CLEGD P
connection with the BREX
issue of shares - (6,627) - - - - - (6,627)
Transfer LR - - - - 933 933 (1,866) -
Profit for the year RERRET - - - - - - 20360 20,360
At 31 December 2003 ~ R=-FE=F
+=R=+—H 38,160 - 6,039 894 2,931 6,114 36,023 90,161
Final 2003 Dividend “ZT-FEER
Declared R 8 - - - - - - (1,908)  (1,908)
Contribution from minority A EE R £ &
shareholder - - - 9 - - - 9
Transfer 304 - - - - 403 403 (808) -
Profit for the year RER & H - - - - - - 10,683 10,683
At 31 December 2004 R=-ZEME
+ZA=+-H 38,160 - 6,039 903 3,334 6,517 43,992 98,945
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mELHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

2004 2003
—EEME —ET=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®ET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit before taxation B 7 A a Al 11,480 21,994
Adjustments for: AT FIBEEL 2 FHE:
Allowance for trade receivables JE W E 5 BR SR B 968 3,190
Depreciation and amortisation of ME- -BEREE
property, plant and equipment 23T E T 8 348 194
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 2 115 -
Interest income A B A (1,986) (789)
Operating cash flows before EEZEEHAIZ
movements in working capital KERPRE 10,925 24,589
Increase in work-in-progress £ & a3 N (7,480) (7,959)
Increase in trade receivables FE U B 5 BR SR N (10,847) (2,634)
Increase in other receivables, H AR IR 12 &
deposits and prepayments SESEENEZSEE Yl (9,581) (7,204)
Decrease (Increase) in amounts JE W2 B & N Rl E
due from related companies A (35 ) 259 (1,646)
Increase in other payables E & < SRIB IS AN 398 284
Increase (decrease) in T8 W SR I8 38 AN
receipt-in-advance (R 4) 1,513 (626)
Cash (used in) generated from L& (A EEXL
operations Re (14,813) 4,804
Dividends paid 2R & (1,854) =
Dividends paid to minority 2B A A
shareholders of a subsidiary LEIRE 2R E (38) =
People’s Republic of China enterprise B 1/ #E A R £ ME %
income tax paid Frig %t (1,124) (873)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEK (FTA) B
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZHREFHE (17,829) 3,931
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Increase in pledged bank deposits & 68 1777 2 12 AN (9,811) =
Purchase of investments in securities % B & 5% & (6,080) (25,906)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BERXH
equipment (3,029) (1,764)
Investment in associate REEERNR 2 "E (2,235) —
Proceeds from disposal of HEBEHEEZ
investments in securities FT 1§ 18 9,353 =
Interest received 2 WA 1,986 789
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BE K
plant and equipment R TS RIE 201 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZTBAZ
ACTIVITIES REeFE (9,615) (26,881)
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mELHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

2004 2003
—EENF —ET=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEED
Contribution from minority MELQRDEKRREE
shareholder of a subsidiary 2,451 -
Proceeds from issue of shares f&% 10 B 17 2 FT 15 508 - 39,114
Share issue expenses A& 1R TR X - (6,627)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METBHABZRETHE
ACTIVITIES 2,451 32,487
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN REeEREASEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 2>) 18 hn % 58 (24,993) 9,537
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H#HzZzBER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HeZEEY 33,153 23,616
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZHAER
AT END OF THE YEAR, ReEEY
represented by bank balances BERIT e MR &
and cash 8,160 33,158
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of

the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company
became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 31 March 2003.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 10 July 2003 (the “Listing
Date”).

The Group resulting from the Group Reorganisation is
regarded as a continuing entity. Accordingly, the

financial statements of the Group have been prepared

1.

SEEARYBERRERESE

RARBERSHEAE(CET _FB
SRR —EE_FRA -+ BEMRSH
EXMRY AR EEREMTL AR -

REARABBEREBRORELR AR
SBRAR ([HRAT]) 2 BIZR ([8I1Z
1) EmmfEEARRERENE QR (JA
THREIAEE]) 2REMETZEEE
H(EEEA]) ARAR_TF=F=
A=+—HBARREXNFTEB R AR ZE
P @NEIL

ARAZBMR_FF=FLA+AH([L
mAM) ERERMAIER LT

SEEARZASERE R —HRELE
ZER-M AKRE W BEBRRRIEGE
BEREE27TS [RESHA S EIE| %

using the principles of merger accounting in GHfEEREERR-

accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting

Practice 27 “Accounting for Group Reconstructions”.

Details of the Group Reorganisation were set out in FHSEEEHZFRBEERAQRARE
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2003 E=FRAA=TRAEZERER ([ER
(the “Prospectus”). ER1) A

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 11 and 12 respectively.

The Group’s books and records are maintained in
Renminbi (“RMB”), the currency in which the majority
of the Group’s transactions is denominated.

AAR T —EIREER AR £ B AR &
BN A2 EEEK D RIENHE11 %12 -

AEBEZRBRRBEANUNARKHE KL
EABNDRZMAARKEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

POTENTIAL IMPACT ARISING FROM THE RECENTLY 2. RIEEMZEBFERNZEBEY
ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 'EA_7 ZF - BAEE JrEW“A(FE/% &
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) issued a number of new MAg]) MHhZIENAEIETBEASSTE
or revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Al BEATBREEL (5B AE f%ﬁ?é}%,ﬁ?f
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (herein collectively BHEEA]) RZZETHF—H—HAziz
referred to as “new HKFRSs”) which are effective for BEARZ ST HBER - ANEEWERER
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January BHE_ZTWNF+_A=T—HBILZHH
2005. The Group has not early adopted these new MEREMZEN DSBS ELER -
HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2004.

The Group has commenced considering the potential ANEBERBERZEND S B RELE
impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position Alz B2 IR EESTBHRE
to determine whether HKFRSs would have a significant HAMHECEEERH AR ZRERE
impact on how its results of operations and financial N B BRETE RSB BMESE
position are prepared and presented. These new ARt A EBE R BRAZHRERE
HKFRS may result in changes in the future as to how PR EEH -

the results and financial position are prepared and

presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEBFBHE

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention and in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are
as follows:

K BHRRDBEBEEERNERRREE
/l:\\ug EH+J§E|Jﬁiﬁ;ﬁx HFE}?KZWZI A
AHBRE ST

Basis of consolidation mEeERE
The consolidated financial statements incorporated the HEVBERERBREARFAIRENBARE
financial statements of the Company and its FHRET-_A=1+T—HIZzHHBHHRE-

subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
effects of the Group Reorganisation which has been

accounted for by using merger accounting.

HEMBHRREREEEAZYE FHEY
ETINEHEEATR
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3.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified

impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associates, plus goodwill/
less negative goodwill in so far as it has not been
written off/amortised/released to income, less any
identified impairment loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenues from transfer of new drug development and
formulation data are recognised upon transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the compound and data are
delivered to customers.
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3.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenues from contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms and,
where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Payments received that are related to future
performance are deferred and recorded as revenues
as they are earned over the specified future
performance periods.

Subject to the terms as stated in the technology
transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the
technology transferred is applied, the Group may
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised

when the right to receive the income is established.

Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s drug technology is recognized when

the right to receive is established.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

CEBME+-_A=t-BILEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Machinery 10 - 20%
Furniture, fixture and equipment 10 - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement
of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in the income statement.

New drug technology development costs

Expenditure on research activities on new drug
technology is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated asset arising from new drug
technology development expenditure is recognised
only if it is anticipated that the development costs
incurred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered
through future commercial activity. The resultant asset
is amortised on a straight line basis over it useful life.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, new drug technology development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.
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3.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-
date basis and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that
the Group has the expressed intention and ability to
hold to maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities) are
measured at amortised cost, less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual
amortisation of any discount or premium on the
acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated
with other investment income receivable over the term
of the instrument so that the revenue recognised in
each period represents a constant yield on the
investment.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities
are classified as investment securities and other

investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an
identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured
at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by
any impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or

loss for the period.
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At 75 8 = Mt &

3.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match with them with the related
costs. Grant related to expense items are recognised
in the same period as those expenses are charged in
the income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs
of purchase and, where applicable, cost of
development including costs that have been incurred
for the provision of pharmaceutical application,
registration and testing services, is calculated using
the first-in, first out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes
income statement items that are never taxable and
deductible.

Deferred taxation is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for
using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
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3.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 &%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred taxation is
charged or credited in the income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to
equity in which case the deferred taxation is also dealt

with in equity.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the income statement on a straight line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than RMB are
translated at the rates ruling on the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in such currencies are re-translated at
the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Profits and
losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the income

statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XEEFBEK (&)
Retirement benefits scheme B IRTE A 5T &
The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising REEERAHBR 2R EAREME ([
from the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) Bl ) ) T AT iR ORET 8] 2 R R4 5T 81 A 3K
municipal government retirement scheme charged to DEASEBRZTERAUNAAEZLER
the income statement represent contributions paid or e ER Z ke

payable by the Group at rates specified in the rules of

the scheme.
4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEHRIEER
2004 2003
—BENFE -TT=F
RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Transfer of technology for new drug B O R G B 0 R R S B

and new drug development 12,714 21,700
Contracted pharmaceutical BRAARE BN

development services and clinical LE A OF

research services associated with ) 5 3% AR 75

technology transferred by the Group B2 R B 5E AR 75 15,822 11,903
Contracted pharmaceutical B 7S &5 B 45 1l 6 i A

development services and clinical Z BRI A B 7

research services not associated with AR 75 K & PR 7 95 AR 7%

technology transferred by the Group 5,346 2,077
Import registration services A B &R RB 1,198 =
Royalty income B EFRE A 1,032 =
Sales of active pharmaceutical HE B BEYK D Em

ingredients products 45 -

36,157 35,680

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by HARAEEBBEIO% EXEHYREER
segment has not been presented as over 90% of the R B A BB B SR A BB R DA RORIE - i A
Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical PREEER R EFZE IR R H B 80K
research and development, registration, application EIEXEERELCLE RN BB ES
and testing in the PRC and all assets were located in #re

the PRC for both years.

0
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BR®ANEF
2004 2003
—EEMEF —EE=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Profit before taxation has been arrived & %% 81 ¥ 7 2 0 Bk
at after charging: I ESEE
Staff costs (including directors’ BIKA (B
emoluments): BEEME) :
Staff costs B IRA 7,916 6,687
Retirement benefits scheme R OR 18 T 5T S 4
contributions 705 524
8,621 7,211
Less: amount capitalised in W ERGPERR
work-in-progress BRZ &R (4,656) (3,922)
Total staff costs BITKARHE 3,965 3,289
Depreciation e 1,293 1,026
Less: amount capitalised in B EREmPERT
work-in-progress BERZ&H (945) (832)
348 194
Amortisation of intangible assets FATHRAX 2
including in administrative expenses B & = 115 -
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B & 550 425
Research and development costs o 75 I B 25 Bk AN - 1,101
Minimum lease payments paid under  R&EHHBESL 2
operating lease =EHEE 1,800 377
Allowance for trade receivables B W E R SR 968 3,190
Allowance for (reversal of allowance R MmBE (REEE)
for) work-in-progress 1,549 (558)
and after crediting: REGFTA:
Interest income B U A 1,986 789
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

6. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 6. EESREEME

Details of remunerations paid by the Group to the AEESYHFARRIEZZMEFBHT:
directors of the Company are as follows:

2004 2003
—EETNF —EE=4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETT

Non-executive directors fees FEHITESZHED - -
Independent non-executive directors BN FFHITEEHEE
fees - =
Executive directors WITES
— Salaries and other benefits — e kEAREF 809 1,027
— Retirement benefits scheme — R IKAE A 5T 4 5K
contributions 17 7
826 1,034
The emoluments paid to the directors of the Company FRINFFARRES 2T :
during the year were as follows:
2004 2003
—EENEF —ET=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETT

Director A FESE 334 583
Director B LESE 191 282
Director C NEF 150 169
Director D TE= 151 =
Director E KE= - -
Director F oEE - -
Director G REZX - -
Director H FESE - -
Director | TE=S - -
Director J RES - -
Director K FE= - -

826 1,034

of
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATIONS
(Continued)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, four individuals (2003: three individuals)
were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosure set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining individual (2003: two

individuals) were as follows:

6.

EEsREEME (&)

BEMS

AEBzAUKSHFEMALH Edh i

—EE=F ) REARREFE HM e
EREXEE-EBRAL (CET=F W
i) 2B2mT:

2004 2003

—EETMEF —EE=F

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARB TR ARBT T

Salaries and allowances e RERM 179 433
Retirement benefits scheme RKAE A ET 24

contributions - 7

179 440

The emoluments of each of the five highest paid
employees are less than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,060,000) for both years.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Company or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

A EEFHEERZMEFEEZE ZME
T2 1,000,000 T (HBERH AR
1,060,0007T,) °

FR-ARERBERAARREFTSIRUES
FMALXNEMBNE ERMAHLEMNA
AEER 2 2R JERMBEE MEF
T ERFARETAME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

TAXATION BiE
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
The charge represents: P18 37 ¥5 -
PRC enterprise income tax REREMED 881 1,506

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for, as
the Group had no taxable profits in Hong Kong for
both years. The Company’s subsidiaries are subject to
PRC income tax on their assessable profits.

PRC enterprise income tax is computed according to
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

Beijing Dezhong-Venture Pharmaceutical Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Dezhong VP”) and Beijing
Venture-Biopharm Services Co., Ltd. (“V Biopharm”),
subsidiaries of the Company, qualify as foreign
investment industrial and advance technology
enterprises and are subject to PRC enterprise income
tax at a rate of 15 per cent. on its income after
offsetting prior year’s losses. Furthermore, they are
exempted from PRC enterprise income tax for three
years starting from the first year of profitable operations
after offsetting prior year’s tax losses, followed by a
50 per cent. reduction for the following three years.

Dezhong VP became profitable after offsetting prior
year tax losses from 1 January 1999 and as such, it
was exempted from PRC enterprise income tax from 1
January 1999 to 31 December 2001. Dezhong VP is
subject to PRC enterprise income tax at 7.5 per cent.
from 1 January 2002 to 31 December 2004 and at 15
per cent. thereafter.

ERASERMEFEALEEREESE
EAIERBORERN - ML ELF BN B HRAEH
B R R 2 M B A R A BLE FERR & A
BATBEMRER-

B G EFERRETEEEARRE
8-

AAFMEBARILRERE 2 EY I
ZERAR ([ERE2]) RIEREB2E K
BEMEERAR ([B2EX]) Faim
BRETELERSRBCEZER Bt
ZRMEAR 2R ARKHEBEFE ZEIE
& BEM15% 2 P EEMSR LI 3%
MEARIEEBEEFFE 2 HIERIER
BEEERM s EEAFERER BN =
BEEsPRCEMRSH WHRERZ=FF
SR %2 50%F =& o

EREZE LA F—A—BARBEKHEA
FEEZEBEEFRRERN Bt LERR —
AANFE—B—BE-_TT—F+_A=
T—HZHRBCEMSEH - ERE2ENC
T _F—A—HE-ZZTWMF+=_A=
+— B AR R 7.5% 2 B Z A A0 R B 1 S P
SR W ERIE15% 2 B =BT
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CEBME+-_A=t-BILEE

7. TAXATION (Continued) 7.

BIE (%)

V Biopharm became profitable after offsetting prior year E2GE X _TTTF-—H —ARKHEA

60

tax losses from 1 January 2000 and as such, it was
exempted from PRC enterprise income tax from 1
January 2000 to 31 December 2002. V Biopharm is
subject to PRC enterprise income tax at 7.5 per cent.
from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2005 and at 15
per cent. thereafter.

As approved by the relevant tax authorities, Dezhong
VP and V Biopharm also benefit from the exemption of
the business tax applicable to revenue derived from
technology transferred and services provided. The tax
authorities require both companies to pay business
tax first but will refund to the companies upon approval.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before taxation per the income statement

TEEZREBBERGER B LER
B _EETF—A—BE_TT_F+=
A=+—BzHEBEr¥mEHR-82BXE
R-BE=F—F—RAE-_ZETHFt+—
A=+ —BHMEIR7 5% MR EMmhE
RS W BB IE15% 2 B R BH o

REBVGHRELE BEREE2RE2B
AR AR P 88 5 BT I PR R 1 2 AR 7% T EER 2
WHETERRHNERAZEXZR RIS
REZMERBABEAXNERN EEH
BIELHERGRETZME QAR

REEZ SR X B e R 2 BB AR
MEERMT

as follows:

2004 2003
—EEMEF —ZET=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®ET T
Profit before taxation B 7 A a Al 11,480 21,994
Tax charge at the PRC enterprise BAHRBECERMGEHTE15%
income tax rate of 15% TEBIERX 1,722 3,299
Tax effect of expenses that are not & 7E JE AR T I 7127‘1
deductible in determining taxable MBS 2 M E
profit 330 297
Tax effect of income that are not & T JE R B8 B B #J‘E
taxable in determining taxable profit AWM A 2 RIS & (286) (160)
Tax effect of unrecognised deferred REREETIEE E
tax asset ZHBRE (22) (168)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to BTHEREARZ
PRC subsidiaries MEER IR (863) (1,762)
Tax expense for the year REEHIBEREZ 881 1,506
Effective tax rate for the year NEE B E 7.7% 6.8%
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2003, the Group had unrecognised
deferred tax asset of RMB62,000 in respect of the
aggregate deductible temporary differences associated
with the receivables. No deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of deductible temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. At 31 December 2004, the Group did not
have any significant temporary difference.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year of RMB10,683,000
(2003: RMB20,360,000) and the number of 360,000,000
(2003: weighted average number of 313,151,000)
shares of the Company in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for
the year is based on the profit for the year of
RMB10,683,000 (2003: RMB20,360,000) and the
weighted average of 363,540,000 (2003: 314,758,000)
shares (after adjusting for the effect of the outstanding
dilutive options of 3,540,000 (2003: 1,607,000) shares
under the share option schemes of the Company).

BIE (8)

MN_ZEE=ZF+_A=+—B AEEEH
FEMBR X 2 A FR B B = BB 4058 2 R FE R
FEIEFEE E A A R62,0007T B KK
St 1) 2RO A AT 8B -+ i S 42 Spt T 0 B B 2=
BRERAELCHBEE R _ZTTNF+_A
=t B AEBUEFTANERERER-

BEREF

BRERRATDIBEAFERINARE
10,683,000 (ZEE=F: AR K
20,360,0007T) & F AR R R E BT M &
H 360,000,0000% (=== = 4 : Nt F1I &
313,151,000/% ) st & -

REEEREFRANTDBEARFEE RHA
K% 10,683,000t (ZEZT=F: AR%
20,360,0007T) & 14 F 5 £1363,540,000
f% (ZZ T =4 :314,758,0000%) (2 # 1B
BADAERERSIRITE 2 EBEMUE
2 B #ETE K 3,540,0000% (ZZEZE =4
1,607,0000%) 2 & Z{ERE) st & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9. ME-BERRKE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvement Machinery & #£E  vehicles Total

BEXE e S nE ast
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARBTL ARETT ARBTR

THE GROUP X&E
COST B A
At 1 January 2004 R-_ZEWE—HF—8 931 4,446 1,369 692 7,438
Additions B 77 1,921 455 576 3,029
Disposals ﬁ% = (398) = = (398)
At 31 December 2004 W-_EZmE+-A=1+—~H 1,008 5,969 1,824 1,268 10,069
DEPRECIATION ?ﬁ%
At 1 January 2004 R-_ZEWE—HF—8 390 1,759 360 208 2,717
Provided for the year AEEEE 221 694 255 123 1,293
Eliminated on disposals ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ - (197) - - (197)
At 31 December 2004 W-_EZmE+-A=1+—~H 611 2,256 615 331 3,813
NET BOOK VALUES &EE?E
At 31 December 2004 W-_EEmE+-A=+—~H 397 3,713 1,209 937 6,256
At 31 December 2003 RZZEE=5+-A=+—H 541 2,687 1,009 484 4,721
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment
BR-KBRRE
RMB’000
AREETIT
THE COMPANY ¥ NN
CcOST 39
At 1 January 2004 R-ZZETWMF—-—H—H 41
Additions 18 5R 34
At 31 December 2004 RZZEZMFE+=-_A=+—H 75
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZTWE—H—H 10
Provided for the year NEEEE 14
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZEZEME+_H=+—H 24
NET BOOK VALUE REFE
At 31 December 2004 RZZEZMFE+=-_A=+—H 51
At 31 December 2003 RZEBEZ=F+=-A=+—H 31
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

10. NEW DRUG TECHNOLOGY 10. &R v
THE GROUP
AEE
RMB’000
AR F T
cosT B A&
Transferred from work-in-progress during RAFEEFEAEEE MK
the year and balance at 31 December 2004 R_-_ZZTWNF+_-_F=+—H 24 &% 2,625
AMORTISATION e
Provided for the year and balance at REEBEMNR_ZEZTNF
31 December 2004 TZA=1+T—Hz#&#% 115
NET BOOK VALUES REFEE
At 31 December 2004 RZEZTMEF+=_A=+—H 2,510
The intangible assets were amortised over five years. BEED LFBHEH-
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 1. ARMB AR 2R
2004 2003
—EENEF —TE=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%¥ T ARETFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRG KA 30,374 30,374
Amounts due from subsidiaries N S NGIE 11,989 9,562
42,363 39,936

The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book
value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the Group on the date of the Group
Reorganisation.

FEMBRMOZAATIEASEREEEAR
BEEMBARABEEE FEREEE-
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11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The
amounts will not be repayable within twelve months
from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amounts

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

11.

RBLAR 2ER (&)

FEY () B ARIBUAREER 22 R
BEETEEEGRR- EEAFRBARGEEARE
ftet—EAREE Bt GRRFKIASE
mBABE-

are shown as non-current.

ARAMBAAR-BEMF+=A=+
—BZHEMT:

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31
December 2004 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/ Attributable

establishment/  Registered equitable
Company operations and fully interest held
name Legal status  #EMRL/ paid capital EfEEE2 Principal activities
NEER EE AL RY/BeEns SRRAZRA ey £ TEXEK
Direct  Indirect
E# GF:
Dezhong VP Joint venture  Beijing, the PRC ~ RMB7,154,420 - 94512%  The research and development of new drug
BREZ B HEER ARET 1544207 (note (a)) preparation, raw materials, supplementary
(Ft 7% (a)) materials (excipients and additives) and
biodrugs; technological transfer and services
MERRERELA R BB R A
(BVERANE) REDER:
Rz R RH%
Hainan Sinican Private Hainan, the PRC  US$54,000 - 100%  The research, development and production

Bio-labs company  HEEE 54,000% 7 of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
Limited R drugs; technological tansfer of and

services for the research and development
of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic and clinical
research of drugs

R REREEER RAERRAKER:
RERREENER RAERRARERL
RTBERRY: En  EXARRERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

1. REB AR 2% (&)

Place of

incorporation/

Attributable

establishment/  Registered equitable

Company operations and fully interest held

name Legal status  #MAL/ paid capital Bl Principal activities

nAER EE A RY/BEnd FRRARRE RAER TERH

Direct Indirect
E& GF:

Hanzhong Private Hanzhong, US$600,000 - 51%  Sales and manufacturing of Active
Venturepharm company the PRC 600,000% 70 Pharmaceutical Ingredients products
Pharm-Chemical L&A 7] hEE HEREERHENRKHDER
Company Ltd.

PK. Pharmatech  Private Mumbai, India INR 100,000 - 50% Inactive
Private Limited company EHIEZE 100,000E1 & E L (note (b)) T EFREEH

hERT (M3 (b))

V Biopharm Joint venture  Beijing, the PRC ~ RMB1,655,747 - 100%  The research, development and

Bzt a% REE R AR 1,655,747 production of drugs, natural
drugs and synthetic drugs;
technological transfer of and
services for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs

HE REREEER RAEMRAKEm:

RERREEDER RAERRAKER
ZBEMERERRY: Bn EHHE
RERHE

Venturepharm Private British Virgin US$100 100% - Investment holding
Laboratories company Islands 100% T &8 R
(BVI) Limited ~ FL&AA RERAES
(“VP (BVI)")

Venturepharm Private Hong Kong, PRC ~ HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
Life Sciences company ~ FEIEE 10,0007 7T T EFARES
Capital Limited ~ #L&2 &

CELATREET
REERARA
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1. REB AT 2 &= (&)

11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Attributable

66

establishment/  Registered equitable
Company operations and fully interest held
name Legal status  #EMRL/ paid capital EfEHE2 Principal activities
NG A RY/Bensd HRRAZRE RAER TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE B#
Venovo Pharma Private British Virgin US$1 100% - Investment holding
US Inc. company Islands 1% &8 R
R RERAES
TrRERE2 Private Beijing, the PRC  US$200,000 - 100%  The research, development and production of
BERK company  HEILR 200,000% 70 drugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
BRAA R technological transfer of and services for
the research and development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and clinical
research of drugs
HE BREREEER ARAERRENER:
RERREENER ARERRERER
ZBMBERRY: En EMHE
REGRHE
Notes: B 7 :
(a) Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the (a) BREAEEEEREZZPEBRRITLL

Group and the minority shareholder of Dezhong VP, the
minority shareholder agree to waive its 4.488% profit
sharing in Dezhong VP for the three years ending 31
December 2005. Accordingly, the Group’s profit sharing
in Dezhong VP for the year was changed from 94.512%
t0 99%.

The Group held major representation of the board of
directors in this company.

BE DEREREREEMOHERES
HE-_ZTAF+-_A=+—BHI=@A%
[ 24.488%3 Fl - A It - REBRAFEAS
BEREE ZEHNHI4.512% B REI9% °

(b) AEBEEZARZERTENHALBIEL-

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities B B8 A BB A A 4F 4K Sk 7K 6F 5 ] BRF T 4
outstanding at the end of the year or any time during BEEMBMREEZEBES-

the year.
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12. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 12. KRB E 2 A 2l
THE GROUP rEM
2004 2003
—gEME  —TT=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Share of net assets of an associate BB ZENBEEFE 2,235 -
Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2004, RZZEZEWNFE+ZA=1+—H HEARAME
which is held indirectly by the Company, are as follows: BEHEBEZASEEBERARIGENT:
Place of incorporation/ Attributable
Name of associate establishment/operations equity interest Principal activity
BENFEN EMRYL L FE 1k AR 7 B8 & TEXK
Zhejiang Dankong Venturepharm Co. Ltd. Zhejiang, the PRC 45% Inactive
BT W R RS
13. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 13. BHFRE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
T&EE AAF
2004 2003 2004 2003
“ETNEF —ET=F —ETNF —EE=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARB TR ARBTT AR TR ARETT

Non-current ER B

Unlisted held-to-maturity 3F £ 45 2| &

debt securities ZEBES 16,553 25,906 16,553 25,906
Unlisted investment REBAINZ
securities FELEMIKE
outside Hong Kong, BH
at cost (BRATE) 6,080 - - -
22,633 25,906 16,553 25,906

6/
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

14. WORK-IN-PROGRESS 14. 8 &
2004 2003
—EEMEF —EE=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
THE GROUP rEE

Work-in-progress - contracted (note (a)) &L — B 5 4 (ki (a)) 9,183 7,184

Work-in-progress - not-contracted R G — RETA (Bt & (b))
(note (b)) 19,809 14,459
Allowance for work-in-progress 8 M (3,872) (2,323)
25,120 19,320

Notes:

(a)

The balance represents the project costs incurred for
the contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, but have not met the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable

performance requirements and contractual terms.

The balance comprises of development costs incurred
with the intention of outright sales as technology transfer
but have not been contracted.

At 31 December 2004, the carrying amount of work-in-
progress that were carried at net realisable value
amounted to RMB3,023,000 (2003: RMB1,292,000).

HEREERI M2 A BB RS
SR OB RS EE A 2 T B AR AN - M B
REBRTE 2 EE R AR A R GR MR e
Y B AR e AE T RO

FAERERERRNERAB L E 2R
BRAS B RETSLA A0

R-_TTNE+—F=+—H A& F
B R ERRERAEAARKS3,023,000
T (ZZEZ=F: AR%1,292,0007T) °
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15. TRADE RECEIVABLES 15. EWWE S RN
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days AEERBETHESEFPZ2THEENRR
to its trade customers. The aged analysis of trade 0B REEHAEEEIWE ZRRZRER
receivables of the Group at the balance sheet date is AT
as follows:
2004 2003
—EETMEF —ET=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETTT
Within 90 days 90H A 9,663 1,584
91 - 180 days 91H =180H 1,412 50
181 - 365 days 181H £365H 438 -
11,513 1,634

16.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments at 31 December 2004 are deposits of
RMB2,500,000 paid in respect of new drug technology

from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary.

16. Hitb B KB - RER AN A

R-BEOF+= ﬁ T— B EMEMR
H-ReENRAREHNB AR D BRR
Eﬁ%ﬁfiuu?ﬁimﬁﬁiHZ&fﬁ}\Eﬁ%
2,500,0007T °
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17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 17. B EAE A A KB

Details of the amounts due from related companies JEWBEE R RIRIBE 2B :
are as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE PN
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EENEF —TE=F —EENF —EE=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name of company NE BB ARBT R ARBTT ARBT T ARETTT
Sanmenxia Sinoway =PI EFE %
Pharmaceutical BEEHR A G
Co., Ltd. (“Sinoway ([EmsE
Pharmaceutical”) 2lgz]|) 812 990 - =
Venturepharm Inc. Venturepharm Inc.
(“VP Inc.”) (VP Inc.)) 1,580 1,661 25 25
2,392 2,651 25 25
Both companies are the subsidiaries of the Company’s MERAREARNAREEZRR KB A A
substantial shareholder.
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and ERRBEREER RERERERFEE

repayable on demand.
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18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. A
Number of Shown in
ordinary the financial
shares Amount statements
EERHA €8 HMEBEHRRIT
HK$'000 RMB'000
FHET ARETTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEA0E L TR
Authorised: ETE A
At the date of incorporation WA sz B ER (B = ()
(note (1)) 500,000 50 53
Increase during the period B A 42 0 (B & (i)
(note (iif)) 999,500,000 99,950 105,947
At 31 December 2003 and RZEZE=F
31 December 2004 +-B=+—H
RZZTME
+=-—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 106,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREAR
Issue of share to initial RERREAL
subscriber (note (i) BTG (HEEEx) 1 = =
Issue of shares on acquisition B W B BT /8 2 7]
of a subsidiary (note (ii)) i 2 17 AR 0 (BT EE (i) 22,294,733 2,229 2,363
Issue of shares by capitalisation BRI & (B
of the share premium account REMmETRG
(note (iv)) (B 3 (iv)) 247,705,266 24,771 26,257
Issue of shares on placing HBLE M 1T D
(note (v)) (Bt E(v) 90,000,000 9,000 9,540
At 31 December 2003 and RZZEZE=F
31 December 2004 +=ZA=+—H
RZZEZTMF
+=—A=+—8H 360,000,000 36,000 38,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE
18. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital
for the period from 21 May 2002 (date of incorporation)
to 31 December 2004 are as follows:

(i) The Company was incorporated on 21 May 2002
with an authorised share capital of HK$50,000
divided into 500,000 shares of HK$0.10 each. One
share was allotted and issued to the initial
subscriber of the Company on the date of
incorporation.

(i) On 31 March 2003, the Company issued
22,294,733 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for
the acquisition of VP (BVI) pursuant to a
reorganisation agreement.

(iii) Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the then
shareholders of the Company on 31 March 2003,
the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$50,000 to HK$100,000,000 by
the creation of additional 999,500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each.

(iv) Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the then
shareholders of the Company on 23 May 2003,
the Company allotted and issued a total of
247,705,266 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to
the then shareholders of VP (BVI) by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$24,771,000
standing to the credit of the share premium
account and the capital reserve of the Company.
These new shares ranked pari passu in all
respects with the then existing shares.

(v) On 10 July 2003, the Company placed 90,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to professional,
institutional and other investors at a price of
HK$0.41 per share. These new shares ranked pari
passu in all respects with the then existing shares.

18. A& (%)

R-ZTZE_FRA-+—H (FMKILA
M E-_ZTNF+_A=+—HILtHBEZ
ARARBABBFEMT :

iy XARMN-_ZZE_FHA-_+—HBF
X 3z - H A E R A &50,00008 7T 0
#500,0000% & % E 80.10% 7T 2 %
oM A S B B - AR 2 5 Bt 2% &% 8
TIREG FARBEBRRBREAL

(i RAZEZE=F=A=1+—H ARFIR
BEABZLWEVP (BVI)E T
22,294,733 F R EEO0.10% 7T 2 &
e

(i) BEBEARAIERREBBNR - =
FZRA=T—HZEERBER ~AF
LA TE IR AN FEFEHNEE17999,500,0004%
BREEIIETZERAKRE A
50,000/% JT. 1% 1 Z 100,000,000 JT °

(iv) BREARARIERRER=_ZTE=FA
AZ+=RBBzZEMAZER KA
15 1% 17 42 (& B 7R 24,771,00078 JT 2 #
BEARERAARZENBBBIEER
LABD 2% 2 317 & ££247,705,266 % & i
HE0.10B T2 L@ TVP (BV)ZE
RRE - ZENRNEERIRERNOE
EHEHEBREMA-

(v) R=Z=ZZE=FtA+H A2RNUNER
0.417% JT iz % 90,000,0008% & % &= (&
0I0B Tz EBMIRTEHEF HWEREM
REEH - ZEMBRNEERRF 2BRH
EEAEAZERFMA-
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CEBME+-_A=t-BILEE

BRESE

19. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 19.

As at 31 December 2004, the Company operated two
share option schemes. A share option scheme was
adopted and approved by the sole shareholder of the
Company on 31 March 2003, pursuant to which the
Company granted certain share options to employees,
directors and other participants prior to the listing of
the Company on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). Another share option
scheme was also adopted and approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 23 May 2003 (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

Both schemes were adopted for a period of ten years
commencing from 23 May 2003 pursuant to a written
resolution of the shareholders passed on 23 May 2003
for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to directors and eligible employees and other
participants. Under both schemes, the Company may
grant options to eligible employees and directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. In addition, under the Share
Option Scheme, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to any contractor, supplier,

customer, agent or advisor, of the Group at the

discretion of the Board of Directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the
Share Option Scheme is subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of issued shares
of the Company from time to time.

R-ZFBZEMF+_A=+t—HB ARAET
MR AR Bl AR B — RN _FF
=F=A=+— Ei%xfm)&ﬁt/ﬁ—lﬁaﬁﬂﬁf
HE B AR RER QR R R AAIE
R ETRTEES ﬁ%&ﬁm,,\%&ﬁ
TERE (TEHRAMERAERER
g ARARBERR_FTZE=FAA_T=
BERA RS —RE RS ([
&) -

REBERR_FZT=FAA_1+=BES
ZEMRBR MEFEZRAFHI/E
—EE-FAA_tZRAEFTF HXE
BNRAEE AEREERAEMSEER
HEER K E - RIBZ M AR S AR A A]
AARBIRENBARAEREERES
RHBRE ARBBARAR KM LN AR
AR RIEB R IR EETEHNBETER
AEBEFAERE HER TP KL
) 1% i Ak

REBE R 81T
BT

ZBEMBREZ TS

(i) HETERIEERERT S RARQREMR
HAd BB B H M EARITEZ
PEBREMAIEETZRS RN

TERBAATTHERIRG R

£1730% °
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19. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

19. B RESTE (&)

4

(i) the Board may grant Options, generally and
without further authority, in respect of such number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other schemes in aggregate not exceeding
10 per cent. of the issued share capital of the
Company at the Listing Date.

The terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
substantially the same as those of the Share Option
Scheme, except that the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is limited to 11,520,000
shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon
acceptance of the grant of the options. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will be the highest of (a) the closing price of the
ordinary shares of the Company on the date of offer;
(b) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary
shares of the Company for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (c) the
nominal value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

Any options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme must be
exercised during such option period as may be
determined and notified by the directors of the
Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the options.

(i) E=EA—REBEE - TREMK
% R AR 1R 5T B R A AT & b 5 &I
ZHEBRERTEMBEITZRNE
BzERE EEHARNDEE TEEAB
ARABIRETBHPZERTRAR S
Zto

BREARAFHERABRETEREZ
BREMSPREZBEODEE LR A
11,520,000 B 2 41 B IR 2 B & B BB BX
Rt & Z IR B B R A AT B AR R

KR (B 1 T AR B B IR BB 3 o 1T
FEEPHAATNEERERA T =B
BEE ()R AT 2 L ERAE T ERER
H > U P ¢ (b)R TR 1 B AR B R
AESLARATEARZ FHKHE R
(C)RAR EBR 2 EE-

RAR &R AR & RUR BB A 5T 8 & B i g
AEIREZEREREERARRESH
REEEIANE cBRERRAITE NS
BiEaROBREZ BT Fo
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19. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 19. IBRMESTE (&)
Details of the Company’s share option granted under BEERARERABERETSRE 2K
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: NRIEREFBERT:

Number of share options

BREHRA

QOutstanding Granted  Outstanding Granted  Outstanding

Exercise Exercisable at during at during at

price period 1.1.2003 the year 1.1.2004 the year 31.12.2004

R-28=F R-ERME R-220F

-A-H -A-H tZA=t-8

g ik WATE  REARH WATE  REARH AT

Director HK$0.32 20.6.2003 - 19.6.2013 - 7,200,000 7,200,000 - 1,800,000
3 032 “EE=F ACTRE
ZE-ZERAThH

QOther participants HK$0.32 20.6.2003 - 19.6.2013 - 2,520,000 2,520,000 - 2,520,000
A2 EE 0.32% 7 “TE-ERACZTRZ
ZE-=ExAThE

QOther participant HK$0.40 20.6.2003 - 19.6.2013 - 1,800,000 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
A2 EE 040% T “EEZF ACTRE
“E-ZERAThH

- 11,520,000 11,520,000 - 11,520,000

No share options were granted under the Share Option REARBZE-_ETNMF+-_A=1+—H"

Scheme during the year and as at 31 December 2004. AN B A AR PR B AR A 5t B 4% H A AT B AR

e

I8
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20. RESERVES 20. f##%

Accumu

Con- -lated

Share Capital tributed (loss) profit
premium  reserve  surplus Rit (F#E) Total
R EE EXRE BHER i Al At
RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETRT AR®TR

THE COMPANY VYN
Capital contributed by REZEARLE

shareholders - 6,622 - - 6,622
Contributed surplus arisingon ~ SEEERELZ

Group Reorganisation ERRH = = 28,011 = 28,011
Issue of shares on placing R & & 7R K 29,574 = = = 29,574
Capitalisation issue during BANEALET

the period (20,529) (5,728) - - (26,257)
Expenses incurred in connection B B#{TIMA IR X

with the issue of shares (9,045) - - - (9,045)
Net profit for the period H % 4 - - = 1,957 1,957
At 31 December 2003 RZZEE=F+-_A=1—H - 894 28,011 1,957 30,862
Final 2003 Dividend declared ~ ER-_ZZE=FRHBR S - - - (1,908) (1,908)
Net loss for the year FREEFE = = - (254) (254)
At 31 December 2004 RZEENF+_A=+—H - 894 28,011 (205) 28,700
Statutory reserve EERE
As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations, RIREH R BUEGI RIER 2 E  RNARR
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the FEKZZHMB AR EBERBELR 2
PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation 10%BAETERAKREREES (REARENR
for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where BRRIEHRA 250%RIN) -REEES(E
the reserve balance has reached 50% of the AT A 2 SESIE INE R EEEE
subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve fund can Fo RABERERE-

only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated

losses or increase capital.
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20. RESERVES (Continued)

20. f#fE (&)

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC shall appropriate 5% to 10% of its net profit after
taxation as the statutory enterprise expansion fund.
The directors shall have discretion in determining the
percentage within the range specified by the relevant
PRC laws and regulations.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the
company which was the holding company of other
members of the Group prior to the Group
Reorganisation, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued thereof pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional
contributions made by the shareholders of the
Company prior to the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange and the additional contributions
made by the minority shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company during the year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the net assets of the
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the
Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders comprise share premium, capital
reserve, contributed surplus and accumulated (loss)
profit which in aggregate amounted to RMB28,700,000
(2003: RMB30,862,000). In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including
the share premium account, of the Company and,
under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the
Cayman lIslands, the Company must be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business immediately following the distribution of
dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

21.

22.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2004, work-in-
progress of RMB2,625,000 (2003: nil) was transferred

to new drug technology.

During the year ended 31 December 2003, the major
non-cash transactions were as follows:

(i) On 31 March 2003, the Company issued a total of
22,294,733 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for
the acquisition of VP (BVI) pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation.

(i) Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company on 23 May 2003,
the Company allotted and issued a total of
247,705,266 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to
the then shareholders of VP (BVI) by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$24,771,000
(equivalent to RMB26,257,000) standing to the
credit of the share premium account and the

capital reserve of the Company.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2004, the Company and the Group
had pledged its bank deposits of RMB9,811,000 (2003:
nil) and investments in securities of RMB16,553,000
(2003: nil) to a bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group. No utilisation of the general
banking facilities at 31 December 2004.

21.

22.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 75 8 = Mt &

23.

24.

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings which fall due as follows:

23.

HEMNEAE

REE R REERETAIAESCEHOR
EmEREE T REFZARRZERS
APEWT

2004 2003

—EENEF —ET=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETTT

Within one year —F R 1,785 1,672
More than one year but within —FUAEERFER

five years 7,261 7,203

Over five years BB A F 3,840 5,684

12,886 14,559

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of ten years (2003:
four years) and rentals are fixed for the lease term.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributed to a local municipal government
retirement scheme for all qualified employees in the
PRC. The employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at the
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contribution payable in the future years.

The total cost charged to income statement of
approximately RMB705,000 (2003: RMB524,000)
represents contributions payable to the scheme by the
Group during the year.

24.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 75 8 = Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2004 H#Z=—ZFNE+-_A=+—HALEE

25. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 25. BERS
During the year, the Company had the following RATRERNEEFEE A+ (REREA
significant transactions with certain related parties wApL | 8BS TEEIEEBEA L)
which also deemed to be connected persons as SEAZTSWT:
defined by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM:
2004 2003
Name of —EEMEF —EE=F
connected person Nature RMB’000 RMB’000
BEAL HE AR® T ARBT T
Sinoway Pharmaceutical Other operating income — Disposal of
B e B property, plant and equipment 199 -
HpEEWA-—HLEVE BERRE

VP Inc. Revenue — Contracted research and

development, pharmaceutical

application, registration and

testing services

Wz — BRI AR R AR

SIBERGE EMRRAH RS 636 1,655
The above transactions were carried out in accordance FRR B TIRET B E 2 G ETe
with the terms agreed by both parties.
Balances with these related parties as at 31 December RZZEZEWMF+ A =+—HARREZ
2004 are set out in note 17. LBBEANT 2 BRI FE7 o
In addition, the minority shareholder of Dezhong VP 1H:$7|\ BREEZIVERFEREEN_Z
has been entered into an agreement with the Group in E=Ft-ARIumE REREERSG
December 2003 and agreed to waive its 4.488% profit ’%%r"i#’\étéi_ ZEhFE+_H=1+—H
sharing in Dezhong VP for the three years ending 31 IE =B E 2 4.488%% Fl|
December 2005.

26. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 26. S E B

During the year, the Group received a government FRANEEERNBUTHARTRFAZEIER
subsidy of RMB291,000 (2003: nil) towards the i3 2 f B e AR¥291,000T (Z2F
research and development projects. The amounts have =FE) EHEHEBEERFEANT AEMLE
been included in other operating income for the year. A e
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

it 75 it =

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t—HLEE
2001 2002 2003 2004
—ET—F —EE-F —EE=F “EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARBT
Turnover =E 15,871 32,453 35,680 36,157
Profit before taxation B 5% A1 A 8,847 19,550 21,994 11,480
Taxation B8 - (237) (1,506) (881)
Profit after taxation BRREBRTDH
before minority interests P& =R HE 25 A& A 8,847 19,313 20,488 10,599
Minority interests DR R E R (376) (186) (128) 84
Profit for the year R Z 5 A 8,471 19,127 20,360 10,683
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
At 31 December
WRt=A=+—-H
2001 2002 2003 2004
—ET-F —TT_F ZET=F “EZMF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T ARBT T AR¥ET R
Total assets less current BEERTHAE
liabilities 14,538 38,056 91,031 102,135
Minority interests DR R E R (555) (742) (870) (3,190)
Shareholders’ funds BRES 13,983 37,314 90,161 98,945
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Bt 5 B &

B TSR B A

Notes to the financial summary:

1. The results for each for the four years ended 31 1. #E_ZTTNF+_A=+—HLEEF

32

December 2004 have been prepared on a combined
basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the
Group structure, at the time when the Company’s
shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, had been
in existence throughout the years concerned. The
figures for the year ended 31 December 2001 and
2002 have been extracted from the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 June 2003. The results for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2003 and 2004
have been extracted from the audited consolidation
income statement as set out on page 40 of the financial
statements.

The combined balance sheet as at 31 December 2001
and 2002 have been extracted from the Company’s
Prospectus dated 30 June 2003. The consolidation
balance sheets as at 31 December 2003 and 2004
have been extracted from the audited consolidated
balance sheet as set out on page 41 of the financial
statements.
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